contract for the conduct of the operation until April 10, 2003, to permit the railroad an opportunity to file a waiver request pursuant to §241.7.

(c) *Emergencies*. (1) In an emergency situation, a railroad may conduct, or contract for the conduct of, a railroad operation in the United States that is dispatched from a location outside the United States, provided that:

(i) The dispatching railroad notifies the FRA Regional Administrator of each FRA region where the railroad operation was conducted, in writing as soon as practicable, of the emergency; and

(ii) The extraterritorial dispatching is limited to the duration of the emergency.

(2) Written notification may be made either on paper or by electronic mail.

(3) A list of the States that make up the FRA regions and the street and email addresses and fax numbers of the FRA Regional Administrators appears in appendix C to this part.

(d) *Liability*. The Administrator may hold either the railroad that conducts the railroad operation or the railroad contractor that conducts the operation, or both, responsible for compliance with this section and subject to civil penalties under §241.15.

#### §241.13 Prohibition against track owner's requiring or permitting use of its line for a railroad operation dispatched by an extraterritorial dispatcher; exceptions.

(a) General. Except as provided in paragraphs (b) and (c) of this section, an owner of railroad track located in the United States shall not require or permit the track to be used for a railroad operation that is dispatched from outside the United States.

(b) Transitional period to continue existing extraterritorial dispatching. An owner of a track segment located in United States that the is extraterritorially dispatched pursuant to the regulations contained in 49 CFR 241, revised as of October 1, 2002, may require or permit the track segment to be continued to be used for a railroad operation that is extraterritorially dispatched until April 10, 2003, to permit the railroad an opportunity to file a waiver request pursuant to §241.7.

49 CFR Ch. II (10-1-13 Edition)

(c) *Emergencies*. In an emergency situation, an owner of railroad track located in the United States may require or permit the track to be used for a railroad operation that is dispatched from outside the United States, provided that:

(1) The dispatching railroad notifies the FRA Regional Administrator of each FRA region where the operation was conducted, in writing as soon as practicable, of the emergency and

(2) The extraterritorial dispatching is limited to the duration of the emergency. Written notification may be made either on paper or by electronic mail.

(d) Liability. The Administrator may hold either the track owner or the assignee under §213.5(c) of this chapter (if any), or both, responsible for compliance with this section and subject to civil penalties under §241.15. A common carrier by railroad that is directed by the Surface Transportation Board to provide service over the track in the United States of another railroad under 49 U.S.C. 11123 is considered the owner of that track for the purposes of the application of this section during the period that the directed service order remains in effect.

### §241.15 Penalties and other consequences for noncompliance.

(a) Any person who violates any requirement of this part or causes the violation of any such requirement is subject to a civil penalty of at least \$650 and not more than \$25,000 per violation, except that: Penalties may be assessed against individuals only for willful violations, and, where a grossly negligent violation or a pattern of repeated violations has created an imminent hazard of death or injury to persons, or has caused death or injury, a penalty not to exceed \$105,000 per violation may be assessed. Each day a violation continues shall constitute a separate offense.

(b) An individual who violates any requirement of this part or causes the violation of any such requirement may be subject to disqualification from safety-sensitive service in accordance with part 209 of this chapter.

## Federal Railroad Administration, DOT

(c) A person who knowingly and willfully falsifies a record or report required by this part may be subject to criminal penalties under 49 U.S.C. 21311.

[67 FR 75960, Dec. 10, 2002, as amended at 69
FR 30595, May 28, 2004; 72 FR 51198, Sept. 6, 2007; 73 FR 79704, Dec. 30, 2008; 77 FR 24423, Apr. 24, 2012]

## §241.17 Preemptive effect.

Under 49 U.S.C. 20106, the regulations in this part preempt any State law, regulation, or order covering the same subject matter, except an additional or more stringent law, regulation, or order that is necessary to eliminate or reduce an essentially local safety hazard; is not incompatible with a law, Pt. 241, App. B

regulation, or order of the United States Government; and does not impose an unreasonable burden on interstate commerce.

#### §241.19 Information collection.

(a) The information collection requirements of this part are being reviewed by the Office of Management and Budget pursuant to the Paperwork Reduction Act of 1995 (44 U.S.C. 3501 *et seq.*).

(b) The information collection requirements are found in the following sections: §241.7(a), (b), (c); 241.9(c); 241.11(c); 241.13(c); and 214.15. When an effective date for these sections is established, FRA will publish notice of that date in the FEDERAL REGISTER.

APPENDIX A TO PART 241—LIST OF LINES BEING EXTRATERRITORIALLY DISPATCHED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE REGULATIONS CONTAINED IN 49 CFR PART 241, RE-VISED AS OF OCTOBER 1, 2002

Description of United States track segment being extraterritorially dispatched	Length of United States' track segment	Railroad conducting the dispatching
Maine: Between Vanceboro, Maine and Brownville Junc- tion, Maine.	99 miles	Eastern Maine Ry. Co.
Michigan:		
U.S. trackage between Windsor, Ontario, and	1.8 miles	Canadian Pacific Railway Company.
Detroit, Michigan.		, , , ,
U.S. trackage between Sarnia, Ontario, and	3.1 miles	Canadian National Railway Company (CN).
Port Huron, Michigan.		······································
Minnesota: Sprague Subdivision, between Baudette,	43.8 miles	CN.
Minnesota, and International Boundary, Minnesota.		

# APPENDIX B TO PART 241-SCHEDULE OF CIVIL PENALTIES<sup>1</sup>

Section <sup>2</sup>		Willful viola- tion
241.9(a) Requiring or permitting extraterritorial dispatching of a railroad operation (b) Failing to notify FRA about extraterritorial dispatching of a railroad operation in an	\$7,500	\$11,000
(b) Failing to holly FRA about extraternitorial dispatching of a rainoad operation in an emergency situation	5,000	7,500
241.11 Conducting a railroad operation that is extraterritorially dispatched:	7 500	11.000
(a)(1) Generally (a)(2) In an emergency situation-where dispatching railroad fails to notify FRA of the	7,500	11,000
extraterritorial dispatching	2,500	5,000
241.13 Requiring or permitting track to be used for the conduct of a railroad operation that is extraterritorially dispatched:		
(a)(1) Generally	7,500	11,000
(a)(2) In an emergency situation-where dispatching railroad fails to notify FRA of the	2.500	5.000
extraterritorial dispatching	2,500	5,000

<sup>1</sup>A penalty may be assessed against an individual only for a willful violation. The Administrator reserves the right to assess a penalty of up to \$105,000 for any violation where circumstances warrant. See 49 U.S.C. 21301, 21304 and 49 CFR part 209, appendix A.

penalty of up to \$105,000 for any violation where circumstances warrant. See 49 U.S.C. 21301, 21304 and 49 CFR part 209, appendix A. <sup>2</sup>Further designations for certain provisions, not found in the CFR citation for those provisions, and not found in this appendix, are FRA Office of Chief Counsel computer codes added as a suffix to the CFR citation and used to expedite imposition of civil penalties for violations. FRA reserves the right, should litigation become necessary, to substitute in its complaint the CFR citation in place of the combined designation cited in the civil penalty demand letter.

[67 FR 75960, Dec. 10, 2002, as amended at 73 FR 79705, Dec. 30, 2008; 77 FR 24423, Apr. 24, 2012]